
PRINCIPAL ONE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

DUVAL COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
JUNE 7, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.principalonecdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile



 
AGENDA 

PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Clubhouse of IL Villagio 

9745 Touchton Road 
Jacksonville, Florida 32246 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
June 7, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 
  
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. March 1, 2023 Regular Board Meeting………………………………………………………...Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Association’s Maintenance Agreement Amendment Request………………………..Page 5 

2. Discussion Regarding Supervisor Ethics Training Requirement for 2024 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule…....Page 9 

I. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………….Page 11 

2. Receive Public Comments on Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget………..Page 12 

J. Administrative Matters 

K. Board Member Comments 

L. Adjourn 



���������������	
 ������������������������������	����������

������������ ���������������������! ���

"#$%&''()&*+$�,*-#%&$

./0123456�27�89:;3<7=2115�>921?�@5:<A6�B�>/=91�C</7D?�<7�E5FD5G05A�HHI�HJHH

KLMNOPLQ

>/=91�C</7D?I

RLOPMS�TSUO

V23:511975</3�./012:�W<D2:53

.@XWCX.YZ�[W\

C[VV]WX̂_

>\̀\Z[.V\Ŵ �>XÊ@XĈ

aXECYZ�_\Y@�HJHHbHJHc�@\d]ZY@�V\\̂XWd

ECe\>]Z\

W[̂XC\�XE�e\@\f_�dX̀\W�D49D�D45�f<9A6�<g�E/F5A=23<A3�<g�D45�.A27:2F91�[75�C<GG/72D?�>5=51<FG57D�>23DA2:D�h211�4<16

@5i/19A�V55D27i3�9D�jkJJ�FlGl�m/71533�<D45Ah235�7<D56n�9D�D45�C1/04</35�<g�XZ�̀2119i2<I�opqr�̂</:4D<7�@<96I�89:;3<7=2115I

a1<A269�cHHqjI�<7�D45�g<11<h27i�69D53k

[:D<05A�rI�HJHH

W<=5G05A�sjI�HJHH�mtkcJ�FlGln

>5:5G05A�pI�HJHH

897/9A?�qI�HJHc

a50A/9A?�sI�HJHc

V9A:4�sI�HJHc

YFA21�rI�HJHc

V9?�cI�HJHc

8/75�pI�HJHc

8/1?�rI�HJHc

Y/i/3D�HI�HJHc

E5FD5G05A�jI�HJHc

4̂5�F/AF<35�<g�D45�G55D27i3�23�D<�:<76/:D�97?�0/327533�:<G27i�05g<A5�D45�f<9A6l�V55D27i3�9A5�<F57�D<�D45�F/012:�976�h211

05�:<76/:D56�27�9::<A697:5�h2D4�D45�FA<=232<73�<g�a1<A269�19hl�C<F253�<g�D45�Yi57693�g<A�97?�<g�D45�G55D27i3�G9?�05

<0D92756�gA<G�D45�>23DA2:D�3�h5032D5�<A�0?�:<7D9:D27i�D45�>23DA2:D�V979i5A�9D�mrjsn�jcJBqoHH�976b<A�9D�sBtppBpcpBqoHH�FA2<A

D<�D45�69D5�<g�D45�F9AD2:/19A�G55D27il

aA<G�D2G5�D<�D2G5�<75�<A�G<A5�E/F5A=23<A3�G9?�F9AD2:2F9D5�0?�D515F4<75u�D45A5g<A5I�9D�D45�1<:9D2<7�<g�D4535�G55D27i3�D45A5

h211�05�9�3F59;5A�D515F4<75�FA5357D�3<�D49D�27D5A53D56�F5A3<73�:97�9DD576�D45�G55D27i3�9D�D45�90<=5�1<:9D2<7�976�05�g/11?

27g<AG56�<g�D45�623:/332<73�D9;27i�F19:5�52D45A�27�F5A3<7�<A�0?�D515F4<75�:<GG/72:9D2<7l�E926�G55D27i3�G9?�05�:<7D27/56

gA<G�D2G5�D<�D2G5�93�3D9D56�<7�D45�A5:<A6�D<�9�69D5I�D2G5�976�F19:5�:5AD927l

Xg�97?�F5A3<7�65:2653�D<�9FF591�97?�65:232<7�G965�h2D4�A53F5:D�D<�97?�G9DD5A�:<73265A56�9D�D4535�G55D27i3I�3/:4�F5A3<7

h211�7556�9�A5:<A6�<g�D45�FA<:55627i3�976�3/:4�F5A3<7�G9?�7556�D<�573/A5�D49D�9�=5A09D2G�A5:<A6�<g�D45�FA<:55627i3�23

G965�9D�423�<A�45A�<h7�5vF5735�976�h42:4�A5:<A6�27:1/653�D45�D53D2G<7?�976�5=2657:5�<7�h42:4�D45�9FF591�23�09356l

X7�9::<A697:5�h2D4�D45�FA<=232<73�<g�D45�YG5A2:973�h2D4�>2390212D253�Y:DI�97?�F5A3<7�A5w/2A27i�3F5:291�9::<GG<69D2<73�<A�97

27D5AFA5D5A�D<�F9AD2:2F9D5�9D�97?�<g�D4535�G55D27i3�34</16�:<7D9:D�D45�>23DA2:D�V979i5A�9D�mrjsn�jcJBqoHH�976b<A�D<11�gA55�9D

sBtppBpcpBqoHH�9D�1593D�35=57�mpn�69?3�FA2<A�D<�D45�69D5�<g�D45�F9AD2:/19A�G55D27il

V55D27i3�G9?�05�:97:51156�gA<G�D2G5�D<�D2G5�h2D4</D�96=5AD2356�7<D2:5l

.@XWCX.YZ�[W\

C[VV]WX̂_

>\̀\Z[.V\Ŵ �>XÊ@XĈ

hhhlFA27:2F91<75:66l<Ai

E5Fl�HH�mHHBJjHsr>n

Page 1



Page 1 of 3 
 

PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 1, 2023 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Jason Pierman called the March 1, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Principal One 
Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:01 p.m. in the Clubhouse of Il Villagio 
located at 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32246. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Jacksonville Daily Record on September 22, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Pierman determined that the attendance of Chairperson Michelle Hepke, Vice Chairman Brian 
Hepke and Supervisor Victoria Shirk constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the 
meeting.  
 
Also present was District Manager Jason Pierman of Special District Services, Inc. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that he had received correspondence from the Il Villagio interim manager 
notifying the District that they intend to cancel and renegotiate the maintenance agreement.  The item 
will be discussed under New Business.   
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  November 16, 2022,  Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the minutes of the November 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and asked if there 
were any changes/corrections.   
 
Mr. Pierman noted that the minutes in the meeting book had been updated to include Mr. Hepke’s 
appointment to Seat 3. 
   
A motion was then made by Mr. Hepke, seconded by Mrs. Hepke Macy and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of the November 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 

Page 2



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Il Villagio Association Correspondence 
 
Mr. Pierman distributed copies of the letter from the Association, notifying the District of their intent to 
cancel and renegotiate the maintenance agreement.  He noted that he had spoken with Ms. Nadel, who 
is the interim Association manager.  Following discussion, Mr. Pierman explained that, because the 
Board was about to consider the proposed budget for next year, they should add a maintenance line item 
to cover the cost of maintaining the areas that the Association may no longer maintain, should they 
cancel the agreement outright.  It was noted that the electric meters and irrigation are commingled, so 
the Association would have to have those items separated, should they terminate the agreement.    
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-01 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PRINCIPAL 
ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Following discussion, the Board agreed to include a $75,000 line item for potential maintenance costs, 
due to the Association’s potential cancellation of the agreement.  It was noted that the Board does not 
yet know actual costs, but they need to plan for the possibility that the District will take on all District 
maintenance that the Association is currently handling under the agreement. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded by Ms. Shirk and unanimously passed adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-01, amended to include a $75,000 line item for potential maintenance costs, due to the 
Association’s maintenance agreement cancellation.  
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
There were no Administrative Matters to come before the Board. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further Board Member comments. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded 
by Ms. Shirk and unanimously passed adjourning the meeting at 6:38 p.m. 
 

 

Page 3



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 4



AMENDMENT TO THE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN PRINCIPAL 
ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND IL VILLAGIO COMMUNITY 

ASSOCIATION, INC.,  
 

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND IL VILLAGIO 
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., is made effective 
_____________________________________, 2023, by PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose government pursuant to Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes, and located in the City of Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida, whose 
mailing address is c/o Special District Services, Inc., 11000 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 104, 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (hereinafter referred to as the “District”) and IL VILLAGIO 
CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, whose mailing 
address is 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, FL 32246, (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Association”). (The District and the Association are hereafter referred to individually as a “Party” 
or collectively as the “Parties”.) 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the Parties had entered into that certain Maintenance Agreement Between 
Principal One Community Development District and Il Villagio Community Association, Inc., 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Agreement”), recorded at Official Records Book 12935, Page 44, 
of the Official Records of Duval County, Florida, on October 21, 2005; and  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 16 of the Agreement either Part may terminate the 
Agreement on October 1st of any subsequent year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties wish to continue their contractual relationship under the 
Agreement, except as modified herein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants contained herein, 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:  

1. Amendment to Section 5:  
 
Section 5(A) of the Agreement is amended to read as follows:  
 
Section 5. Maintenance Standards.  
 
(A) The Maintenance Standards are attached hereto and incorporated herein as attached 
Exhibit “C.” Notwithstanding, the Landscape Maintenance Standards found in Section 3.1 
of Exhibit C shall be replaced by new Landscape Maintenance Standards jointly 
promulgated and adopted by the Association and the Deerwood Park North Owners’ 
Association, Inc., (“Deerwood Association”). The Maintenance Standards may be changed 
or modified from time to time by the joint resolution of the Association and the Deerwood 
Association without the necessity of amending the Agreement. 

Page 5



 
2. Amendment to Section 7. 

 
Section 7(A) of the Agreement is amended to read as follows:  
 
(A) As long as this Agreement shall remain in effect, the Association shall be 
responsible for performing the Maintenance Services described in Exhibit “C” of the 
Agreement, as amended from time to time by mutual agreement, and the District shall 
reimburse the Association for the costs associated with such performance, including, but 
not limited to, the administrative and management costs associated with the performance 
of the Association’s duties under the Agreement.  
 

3. Amendment to Section 9. 
 
Section 9 of the Agreement is amended to read as follows:  
Section 9. Payment of Assessments Due and Owing to Deerwood Park North Owners’ 
Association, Inc. The Parties acknowledge that the Property may be subject to annual 
special and other assessments imposed by the Deerwood Association pursuant to those 
certain “Protective Covenants of Deerwood Park North” recorded in Official Record Book 
7181, Page 690, as amended, Official Records of Duval County, Florida. The District 
agrees that it shall reimburse the Association the cost of these assessments on a quarterly 
basis and within ten (10) days of being provided an invoice for same by the Association.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

Page 6



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this instrument to be executed under 
seal this ___ day of May 2023. 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of:    Il Villagio Community Association, Inc., a Florida 

not-for-profit corporation 
 
       
       
 
______________________________ By: __________________________________ 
______________________________  Daniel Fetahovic 
(Print Name)        
______________________________ Title: President 
______________________________ 
(Print Name) 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) 
COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of May 2023, by 
Daniel Fetahovic, the President of Il Villagio Community Association, Inc., a Florida 
corporation, on behalf of the company. 
 
              
       (Print Name    
 ) 
       Personally Known     
       or Produced I.D.     
       [check one of the above] 
       Type of Identification Produced 
             
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of:    Principal One Community Development District., 

a local unit of special purpose government 
 
       
       
 
______________________________ By: __________________________________ 
______________________________   
(Print Name)        
______________________________ Title:  
______________________________ 
(Print Name) 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
    ) 
COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of May 2023, by 
_____________________________________, the _________________________ of Principal 
One Community Development District, a local unit of special purpose government. 
 
              
       (Print Name    
 ) 
       Personally Known     
       or Produced I.D.     
       [check one of the above] 
       Type of Identification Produced 
             
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Principal One Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2023/2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, DUVAL 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 7th day of June, 2023. 

ATTEST: PRINCIPAL ONE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: By: 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 9



PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Principal One Community 
Development District will hold Regular Meetings at 6:00 p.m. (unless otherwise noted) at the 
Clubhouse of IL Villagio, 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32246, on the following 
dates: 
 

October 4, 2023 
November 8, 2023 
December 6, 2023 
January 3, 2024 
February 7, 2024 

March 6, 2024 
April 3, 2024 
May 1, 2024 
June 5, 2024 
July 10, 2024 

August 7, 2024 
September 4, 2024 

 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  Meetings are 
open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. 
Copies of the Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by 
contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the date of 
the particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, at the 
location of these meetings there will be a speaker telephone present so that interested persons can 
attend the meetings at the above location and be fully informed of the discussions taking place 
either in person or by telephone communication.  Said meetings may be continued from time to 
time as stated on the record to a date, time and place certain. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact 
the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days 
prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.principalonecdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  JACKSONVILLE DAILY RECORD     Page 10



Miscellaneous Public Notices 23-03233D 
Notice of Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting of the Principal One Community 
Development District 
The Board of Supervisors of the Principal One Community Development District (the 
“District”) will hold a Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting on June 7, 2023, at 
6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the meeting can be heard, at the Clubhouse of IL 
Villagio located at 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32246. 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 Proposed Final Budget of the District. A copy of the Budget and/or the 
Agenda may be obtained from the District’s website or at the offices of the District 
Manager, 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida, 33410 during normal 
business hours. The purpose of the Regular Board Meeting is for the Board to consider 
any other business which may properly come before it. The meetings are open to the 
public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for 
community development districts. Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a 
time and place specified on the record. 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone; 
therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting location so that 
Supervisors may be fully informed of the discussions taking place. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person 
requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at these meetings 
should contact the District Manager at (561) 630-4922, and/or toll free at 1-877-737-
4922, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meetings. 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter 
considered at this Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting, such person will need a 
record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record 
of the proceedings is made at their own expense and which record includes the 
testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
Principal One Community Development District 
www.principalonecdd.org 
May 18/25 (23-03233D) 
 

Page 11



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 
BUDGET.  

 WHEREAS, the Principal One Community Development District (“District”) has 
prepared a Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 and 
has held a duly advertised Public Hearing to receive public comments on the Proposed Budget 
and Final Special Assessment Roll; and, 

WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non ad-valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:  

Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted, and the assessments 
set forth therein shall be levied. 

Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 7th day of June, 2023. 

ATTEST: PRINCIPAL ONE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: By:
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 12



      Principal One
  Community Development District

        Final Budget For
         Fiscal Year 2023/2024

          October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18


	Principal One Community Development District - June 7, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 1, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Association’s Maintenance Agreement Amendment Request
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget





